
 

 

1902 - Serving Our Community for over120 Years - 2023 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 AT 7:00 P.M.  

RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 
 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

 
Board Members General Manager 
Fran Dehn, President Sergio Ramirez  
David Walker, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District General Counsel 
Edward P. Moritz, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member  
  

 
 

 
AGENDA OF BUSINESS 

To participate by telephone or Zoom meeting, public comments can be made by joining Zoom 
meeting at:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82779173581?pwd=c1BhbDlieFNBR0ZocVZnby9NeDhodz09 
Meeting ID: 827 7917 3581 Passcode: 594613 
 
NOTE:  The Board may take action on any agendized item unless specifically designated a “discussion” 
item or a “report.” 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2.    Communications from the Public 
 
3.    Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The 
motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member of 
the Board.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting August 9, 2023 Pg. 3A-1 
B. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 

1629 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 141 Durazno Way, Portola Valley, 
California Pg. 3B-1 

C.    Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit 
No. 1606 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola 
Valley, California Pg. 3C-1 

D. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 
1606 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola Valley, 
California Pg. 3D-1 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82779173581?pwd=c1BhbDlieFNBR0ZocVZnby9NeDhodz09


 

 

E. Consider Resolution Authorizing the President and Secretary to Enter into Agreement 
Creating Covenants Running With the Land for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley  
Pg. 3E-1 

F. Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit 
No. 1623 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola 
Valley, California Pg. 3F-1 

G. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No1623 
for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley, California 
Pg. 3G-1 

H. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit for the 
Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 214 Grove Drive, Portola Valley, California  
Pg. 3H-1 

 
4.   General Manager’s Report Pg. 4-1 
 
5.   Consider Awarding the Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility Improvements Project  
      to Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. Pg. 5-1 
 
6.   Consider Adopting Resolution Recognizing the Achievement of a Six Years Safety Record  
      Without a Lost Time Accident by West Bay Sanitary District Employees Pg. 6-1  
 
7.   Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility Pg. 7-1 
 

 8.   Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update Pg. 8-1 
 
9.   Report, Discussion and Direction on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA)  

       including Solid Waste Franchise Re-Assignment Pg. 9-1 
 

10.  Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant Pg. 10-1 
 
11.  Closed Session: 
 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Gov’t Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)), 
significant exposure to litigation.  

 
 12. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed  
      on Future Agenda  
        

 13.  Adjournment

The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 
wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 

in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation. 



1902 - Serving Our Community for over 115 Years - 2023 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTESOF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 9, 2023 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
President Dehn called the meeting to order at   7:00 PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: President Dehn, Secretary Walker, Treasurer Thiele- 

Sardiña, Director Moritz (zoom), Director Otte 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Beyer, Heydari AND Condotti by Zoom 

 Others Present:   Kip Prahl – Menlo Country Club, Virginia Croll, Elisa Lee,  
      PE – Woodward & Curran 
 
2.      Communications from the Public: None.  
 
3.      Consent Calendar  
 

CONSIDERATION OF ITEM(S) REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Discussion/Comments:  None.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting July 26, 2023  
B. Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills and 

Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters thru July 31, 2023  
C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – July 2023 
D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – July 2023  
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – July 2023  
 F. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue Class 3 Sewer Permit No.  
  18032 for the Construction of Force Main Extension, and Class 5 Sewer Permit No.  
  18033 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 35 Possum Lane, Portola  
  Valley, California  
 
  

Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña 2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0 Abstain:  0 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3A-1



 
 
4.       General Manager’s Report 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported staff was trained on the 
recycling and organics program on August 1st. He also reported payment for SVCW bond 
debt has been paid in the amount of $3.4M. General Manager Ramirez reported the SVCW 
bypass at the Menlo Park Pump Station is complete. General Manager Ramirez reported 
the District will sponsor and ride in the Tour de Menlo event on September 16th. General 
Manager Ramirez further reported the next regular Board meetings will be held August 23rd 
and September 13th. The complete General Manager’s written report is in the August 9, 
2023 agenda packet. 
 

5.     Presentation and Discussion by Woodard & Curran on the Woodside Recycled Water     
         Facility Feasibility Study 

 
Discussion/Comments: Elisa Lee, PE of Woodward & Curran reported to the Board on the 
draft Feasibility Study. Highlights included the study area, current supply, users demand, 
alternatives, flow monitoring/sampling results, and on-site treatment options. Board 
consensus was to bring the final Feasibility Study to the Board for consideration.  
 

6.     Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manger Ramirez reported 6.2MG were delivered in July and 
1.05MG were used for dust control. He also reported the State no longer requires matching 
for the project. In addition, he reported paving for the Avy Altschul Pump Station will begin 
on August 11th.  

 
7.  Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported habitat monitoring will continue 
on August 23rd & 24th. The Levee Improvement Project bid opening is scheduled for August 
17th. A second pre-bid meeting was held with four additional contractors in attendance.  
 

8. Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) 
 

Discussion/Comments: None.  

9. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on  
 SVCW CIP Program and Financing 

 

Discussion/Comments: None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 3A-2



 
 
10.     Closed Session  
 

Entered closed session at  8:52 p.m.  Left closed session at 9:16 p.m. 
  
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Cal. Govt. Code § 54956.9(d)(1)) 
Name of Case:  1740 Oak. Ave., LP v. West Bay Sanitary District, et al., - SMCSC 
Case No. 18CIV02813 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Govt. Code § 54956.9(d)(2): (1 potential  
case) 

 
Reportable action: None.  
 

11. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  
 Placed on Future Agenda 
 

Discussion/Comments: The Board requested staff add a monthly report on the solid waste 
re-assignment to agenda, on the second meeting of the month, and an update on District 
goals quarterly.  

 
12. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:17 PM 
 
 

3A-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3A-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3B 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E., Project Manager 
  
 

Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1629 for the Construction of a 4-inch 
Sewer Main Replacement at 141 Duranzo Way, Portola Valley, 
California 

 
 

 
Background 
 
This permit was for addressing a 4-inch sewer lateral which was improperly repaired by 
a contractor and without the benefit of a District permit. The District instructed the 
contractor, Wizard Plumbing, to replace part of 4-inch sewer main that serves 141 
Duranzo Way. Due to the proximity of the existing 4-inch lateral to mature Redwood 
trees, a variance was given to maintain the 4-inch sewer main rather than upgrading to 
a 6 or 8 inch. 
 

Analysis  

The Board issued permit 1629 at the Regular Meeting of June 14, 2023. District staff 
worked with the contractor to assure the replacement was done in accordance with 
District Standards. 
 
The work has been completed and has been inspected, tested, and approved by staff 
as being in conformance with District standards. A maintenance bond was not required 
in this case since the contractor agreed to replace a portion of the existing 4-inch main 
at their own expense. 
 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board accepts this 4-inch sewer main and 
lateral replacement and directs the General Manager to approve the Class 3 Permit No. 
1629. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (1629)  

Site map 
 

3B-1



3B-2



OF 1 SHEETS

JOB NO.

SHEET

PROJ. ENGR:
CHECKED:

DESIGNED:
SCALE:
DATE:

DRAWN:

DATEDESCRIPTION WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
500 LAUREL STREET,
MENLO PARK CA 94025
PHONE: (650) 321-0384
info@WestBaySanitary.org

4/03/23

FXH
FXH

JJF
AS SHOWN

JJF 141 & 131 DURANZO WAY
PORTOLA VALLEY CA

1

PERMIT # XXXX

3B-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
DURAZNO  WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
north

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX DISTRICT MANHOLE # K11031

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX DISTRICT LAMPHOLE # K11181 REPLACE WITH NEW MINI MANHOLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX DISTRICT LAMPHOLE # K11180

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE ±60LF OF EX4" VCP WITH NEW 4" HDPE BY PIPE BURSTING METHOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"= 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WYE, LATERAL, & CLEANOUT PER DISTRICT STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WYE, LATERAL, & CLEANOUT PER DISTRICT STANDARDS.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3B-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3C 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1606 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola Valley, 
California 

 

 
Background  

The District requires an easement to maintain the flow from the Grinder system that 
serves 30 Holden Court.  The easement includes ingress and egress to the location of 
the Grinder system and is conforming to District specifications.  

 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 
accepting the Deed of Easement. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution         (2023), Grant Deed of Easement 
 

 

3C-1



 RESOLUTION NO.______ (2023) 
 
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 ***** 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President and Secretary of the West Bay Sanitary 
District be and are hereby authorized to accept the attached Grant Deed of Easement 
by and between the following parties: 
 

The Willian A. Lee 2016 Trust 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby directed to place the 
same on record. 
 ***** 
 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:  
 
 Noes:  
 
 Abstain: 

 
 Absent: 
 
      __________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the West  
      Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
      State of California 
 Attest: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
 County, State of California  
                  

3C-2



3C-3



3C-4



3C-5



3C-6



3C-7



3C-8



3C-9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3C-10



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3D 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
  
 
Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1606 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola Valley, 
California 

 
 

 
Background 
 
This permit request was for the construction of a Septic Tank Effluent Pumping (STEP) 
System and force main extension to connect into the existing force main on Golden Oak 
Drive to serve 30 Holden Court in Portola Valley. 
 

Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of July 14, 2021. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve the Class 3 Permit No. 1606. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (1606) 

Site map 
 

3D-1



3D-2



3D-3



Esri, HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community, Esri, HERE, Garmin, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
30 HOLDEN COURT

PORTOLA VALLEY, CA
SEPTIC TANK EFFLUENT PUMPING (STEP) SYSTEM

(1) Septic Tank Effluent Pumping (STEP) System
200 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 079-092-150
Lands of Lee
30 Holden Court
Portola Valley, CA 
Location of system: Front of property near Holden Court

±

Gravity Main

Manhole

OWDZ Force Main

OWDZ

Proposed Location
30 Holden Ct

New 3" HDPE SSFM

Existing 3" SSFM.

3D-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3E 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
  
Subject: Consider Resolution Authorizing the President and Secretary to 

Enter into Agreement Creating Covenants Running With the 
Land for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley  

 

 
Background 

The attached agreement requires that a property owner, who seeks inclusion in the 
District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone, shall protect and maintain certain portions 
of the system to ensure continuity of service.  
 
Analysis  

It had been staff’s experience that transfer of the property from one owner to another 
invariably resulted in a failure to maintain the system as previously agreed. The attached 
Covenants of Agreements Running with the Land ensures that all future owners are 
required to comply with the District’s Code of General Regulations and Specifications. 
 

Fiscal Impact  

Property owners have paid all annexation fees and the fiscal impact would be additional 
sewer service charge revenue to the District once the parcel is connected.  

 

Recommendation 

The Project Manager recommends the Board to approve the Resolution as presented.  
 
Attachments:   Resolution             (2023) 

Covenants Running with the Land 

 

3E-1



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ (2023) 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF “AGREEMENT 
CREATING COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND,” BY AND BETWEEN 

AMRITANSH AND LISA RAGHAV, OWNERS OF REAL PROPERTY, AND THE 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
The District Board finds and determines as follows: 
 
 

A. The proposed Agreement provides adequate protection for the District’s interests 
so as to justify the requested action.  

 
Based upon the foregoing findings and determinations, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED by the District Board as follows: 
 

The Agreement is approved and the President and Secretary are authorized and 
directed to execute the Agreement.  The General Manager is directed to record the 
Agreement in the Official Records of San Mateo County. 

 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 23rd  day of August, 2023, by the following vote. 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        President of the District Board of the  
        West Bay Sanitary District of San  

       Mateo County, State of California 
 
 
Attest: 
 

 ________________________________ 

 Secretary of the District Board of the 
 West Bay Sanitary District of San 
 Mateo County, State of California 
 
 

3E-2



3E-3



3E-4



3E-5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3E-6



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3F 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1623 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley, 
California 

 

 
Background  

The District requires an easement to maintain the flow from the Grinder System that 
serves 229 Grove Drive.  The easement includes ingress and egress to the location of 
the Grinder system and is conforming to District specifications.  

 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 
accepting the Deed of Easement. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution         (2023), Grant Deed of Easement 
 

 

3F-1



 RESOLUTION NO.______ (2023) 
 
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 ***** 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President and Secretary of the West Bay Sanitary 
District be and are hereby authorized to accept the attached Grant Deed of Easement 
by and between the following parties: 
 

Amritansh and Lisa Raghav 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby directed to place the 
same on record. 
 ***** 
 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:  
 
 Noes:  
 
 Abstain: 

 
 Absent: 
 
      __________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the West  
      Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
      State of California 
 Attest: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
 County, State of California  
                  

3F-2



3F-3



3F-4



3F-5



3F-6



3F-7



3F-8



3F-9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3F-10



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3G 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
  
 
Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1623 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley, 
California 

 
 

 
Background 
 
This permit request was for the construction of a Grinder Pump System to connect to the 
existing force main on Grove Drive to serve 229 Grove Drive in Portola Valley. 
 

Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of September 28, 2022. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve the Class 3 Permit No. 1623. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (1623) 

Site map 
 

3G-1



 

3G-2



© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
229 GROVE DRIVE

PORTOLA VALLEY, CA
GRINDER SYSTEM

OWDZ Pump System
OWDZ Force Main

(1) Grinder Pump System
200 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 079-011-050
Lands of Raghav
229 Grove Drive
Portola Valley, CA
Location of System: Front of property

.

New 1-1/4" HDPE Pipe

229 Grove Dr.

Existing SSFM

3G-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3G-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3H 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
  
 
Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1614 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 214 Grove Drive, Portola Valley, 
California 

 
 

 
Background 
 
This permit request was for the construction of a Grinder Pump System to connect to the 
existing force main on Grove Drive to serve 214 Grove Drive in Portola Valley. 
 

Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of January 12, 2022. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve the Class 3 Permit No. 1614. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (1614) 

Site map 
 

3H-1



 

3H-2



!!2

!!2!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
214 GROVE DRIVE

PORTOLA VALLEY, CA
GRINDER SYSTEM

OWDZ Pump System

OWDZ Force Main

(1) Grinder Pump System
200 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 079-030-150
Lands of Holmes
214 Grove Drive
Portola Valley, CA
Location of System: north side of property

.

3H-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3H-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager  
 

Subject: General Manager’s Report  

 

1) Administrative:     
a. Staff is preparing the Sewer Maintenance and Operations Request for Proposals for the 

City of East Palo Alto and will bring the proposal to the Board on September 13th, 2023.  
b. Staff will participate in the Tour de Menlo again this year.  
c. The City of Menlo Park is hosting an open house and asked the District to participate. The 

open house is scheduled for September 16, 2023.   
2) Finance:  

a. The Finance Manager is reconciling the District’s accounting for the prior fiscal year and in 
preparation for the annual audit.  

3) CIP Projects:   

a. Construction Capital Improvement Program (CIP): 

i. Ranger Pipelines has obtained the final permits required for the Bayfront Park 
Sewer Improvements Project.  

ii. The Point Repair Project is underway. Several manhole-to-manhole pipe 
segments have been completed thus far.  

b. Levee Improvement Project:    

i. Levee Improvement Project bid opening was held. The apparent low bidder is 
Anderson Pacific with a bid of $15 million.  

4) Information Technology (IT): 
a. Staff is working with Central Square on the new online permit system.   

 
5) Operations and Maintenance:   

a. Collection System:  
i. Staff received a demonstration on new fully electric excavators and front loaders. 

b. Pump Facilities:  
i. The Pump Crew will begin the pump station telemetry upgrade project soon.  

c. Training: 
i. Maintenance and Construction Staff will receive training on Asbestos Pipe 

handling in August.  
  

4-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

 
    

6) Water Quality: 
a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 

i. Casey Construction commenced the Avy Altschul Pump Station project. The 
majority of the work in the street has been completed. 

ii. The amendment to the Long-Term Agreement has been fully executed. 
iii. The SHGCC pond has been refilled with reclaimed water.   

 
b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  

i. General Counsel is reviewing the draft finance agreement for the State Revolving 
Fund loan and grant.  

 
c. Woodside Recycled Water Facility (WRWF): 

i. The Woodside Recycled Water Facility feasibility study will conclude soon and will 
be brought to the Board. 

7) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. The new EV Charging Policy will be incorporated into the Personnel Policy and will 
come before the Board.  

8) Personnel: 

i. Recruitment for a Maintenance Worker began in late July.    
 

9) Upcoming Events:  
a. Next Regular Board Meetings: Wednesdays, September 13th and September 27th   

10) Misc. Items:  
a. West Bay: The General Manager will update the Board on miscellaneous items related to 

District operations.   

b. Town of Los Altos Hills: Staff continues to provide maintenance and support to the 
Town.    

c. Town of Woodside: The Town is working with Menlo Country Club on the proposed 
Woodside Recycled Water Facility.  

4-2



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. Project Manager 
  
Subject: Consider Awarding the Flow Equalization and Resource 

Recovery Facility Improvements Project to Anderson Pacific 
Engineering Construction, Inc. 

 

 
Background  

The District Board authorized the General Manger to call for bids for the Flow 
Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility (FERRF) Levee Improvements Project on 
March 22, 2023. 
 

Freyer & Laureta, Inc. (F&L) with major support provided by SWCA Environmental 

Consultants (SWCA) worked with the West Bay Sanitary District (WBSD) staff to 

complete the design in June 2023 for the levee improvements around the Flow 

Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility (FERRF).  The improvements include 

both sheetpile and nature-based adaptation measures (living shoreline) to combat 

rising sea levels. 

 
 
Staff advertised the project in July and held a pre-bid meeting on July 11th with an 
original bid opening date of July 25th. Due to the complexity of the project, staff received 
numerous requests for information (RFIs) from contractors.  In order to respond to RFIs 
and attract more contractor interest in the project, an extra pre-bid meeting was held on 
August 2nd and the bid opening date changed to August 17th.  Three bid addendums 
were issued that included RFI responses, the added pre-bid meeting, and the bid 
opening date change. 
  
 
Three construction companies submitted bids for the project. The anticipated 
construction cost for this project was $13,061,000.00. 
 
Analysis  

The bid opening for this project was on August 17, 2023, at 2:00 PM. The District 
received a total of three (3) bids, which were as follows: 
 

5-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

Bidder               City Bid Total   
Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc.    Redwood City $15,095,950.00 
Anvil Builders, Inc.             Emeryville $15,644,448.60  
Pacific States Environnemental Contractors, Inc.   Dublin $19,283,256.00 

 
It is understood that the project shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
Fiscal Impact 

The District applied for a loan from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) to design and construct the Levee as well as the Recycled 
Water facility. The SWRCB awarded the project $66.6 million including $14.7 million in 
State grants. The SRF will fund the recycled water facility and a portion of the levee. 
The District also received a National Fish and Wildlife Foundations (NFWF) grant for 
$4.7 million for the living shoreline constructions and monitoring.   
 
The Capital Assets Fund for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for the FERRF Levee 
Improvements Project has an approved budget of $10 million. The NFWF Grant toward 
project construction costs is $3.6 million. Appropriations to the FY2023/24 budget will be 
necessary since construction will take place over several years.  
 
Staff is asking for an additional $5,095,950 to be added to the budgeted $10 million. 
Staff is requesting the appropriation of approximately 10% contingency to the bid price. 
Therefore, an additional $1.6 million would need to be allocated for a total project 
amount of $16,700,000 (rounded up to $100,000).    
 

Recommendation  

The Project Manager recommends the District Board of Directors authorize the General 
Manager to award the Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility Levee 
Improvements Project to Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. based on 
Anderson Pacific being the lowest bidder.  

 

Attachment: Resolution 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5-2



 RESOLUTION NO.             (2023) 
  
RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE FLOW 
EQUALIZATION AND RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY LEVEE IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. 1762.0 TO ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION, 
INC. AND ALLOCATE FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION  
 
 
 *****  

WHEREAS, the Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility Levee 
Improvements Project No. 1762.0 plans and specifications were prepared by 
Freyer & Laureta, Inc. of San Mateo, California, and 

 
 WHEREAS, Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. is the lowest bidder 
           for the project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there was no irregularity or material defect in Anderson Pacific 
           Engineering Construction, Inc.’s bid package, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc.’s base bid amount 
           was $15,095,950.00, and 
 
 WHEREAS, this was the lowest responsible and responsive base bid, and 
 

WHEREAS, based on available funds, the Bid be awarded to Anderson Pacific 
Engineering Construction, Inc.’s for $15,095,950.00, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Capital Assets Fund for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for this project 
was proposed for $10,000,000.00; however, $6,700,000.00 is now allocated to 
this project.  

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the District Board of the West Bay 
Sanitary District, County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby award a 
construction contract to Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
$15,095,950.00 for the Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility Levee 
Improvements Project No. 1762.0, and subject to review and approval as to form by 
District’s General Counsel, authorizes the General Manager to execute the construction 
contract, and allocate an additional $1,600,000.00 for construction contingencies out of 
the Capital Assets Fund. 
  
  

5-3



 
 *****  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
regular meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of August, 2023, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:   
 
 Absent:  
 
 Abstain:  
       

 
 
____________________________________ 

      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 
 

5-4



 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Adopting Resolution Recognizing the Achievement of 

a Six Years Safety Record Without a Lost Time Accident by 
West Bay Sanitary District Employees  

 

 
Background 

On July 8, 2023 West Bay Sanitary District employees surpassed six years without a 
lost time accident which represents one of the lowest rates of on-the-job injuries in the 
wastewater and public works industries.  Employees have worked over 374,000 hours 
without a lost time accident. 
 
Analysis  

As a result of working year after year without a lost time accident, the District has 
realized a savings in insurance contributions to the California Sanitation Risk 
Management Authority.   

A proactive safety program is an essential part of effective risk management and 
provides benefits other than insurance premiums such as improved morale, increased 
productivity, employee’ wellbeing, and reduced equipment and vehicle repair costs. 

Over the last six years, the District’s Workers’ Compensation Experience Modification 
Factor (X-MOD), which adjusts premium based on loss history, declined over 35%.  In 
Fiscal Year 2021-22, it declined 38% from the prior year (from 1.22 to 0.76) resulting in 
savings of approximately $26,000. In Fiscal Year 2022-23 the X-MOD factor continued 
remain below 1.0 at .91 which resulted in additional savings.  

 

Fiscal Impact  

There is no fiscal impact of this resolution. 

 

Recommendation 

The General Manager recommends the Board adopt the resolution recognizing the 
achievement of a six years safety record without a lost time accident by West Bay 
Sanitary District employees. 

 

Attachment: 2023 Reso Six Year Safety Record w/o Lost Time Accident 

6-1



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.              (2023) 
 

*****  
RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE ACHIEVEMENT OF A SIX YEARS SAFETY RECORD WITHOUT 
A LOST TIME ACCIDENT BY WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT EMPLOYEES  
  
 
WHEREAS, on July 8, 2023 West Bay Sanitary District employees have surpassed six years without a 
lost time accident;  and 
 
WHEREAS, this achievement represents one of the lowest rates of on-the-job injuries in the 
wastewater and public works industries; and  
 

WHEREAS, the prior record for a similar achievement had been four years, recognized on March 21, 
2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has realized reductions in insurance contributions for Workers’ 
Compensation coverage, due to positive loss history, reducing the experience modification factor by 
35% over six years and saving approximately $26,000 in FY 2021-22 and additional savings in FY 2022-
23; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT benefits from a proactive safety program that includes, classroom training, 
hands-on training, tailgate safety meetings, annual reviews of safety procedures, and an inclusive safety 
committee;  and 
 
WHEREAS, a proactive safety program and passionate participation by all employees promotes a safe 
and energetic work environment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District, 
County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby recognize the achievement of a safety record of 
six years without a Lost Time Accident by West Bay Sanitary District employees. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be spread upon the permanent minutes of the Board 
and that suitably inscribed copies be displayed at District buildings in view of employees, board 
members and the public, and distributed to other appropriate agencies. 
 

***** 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a special meeting 
thereof held on the 23rd day of August, 2023, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:  
 
 Absent:  
 
 Abstain:  
 
         ____________________________________ 
         President of the District Board of the 
         West Bay Sanitary District of San 
         Mateo County, State of California 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 
 

6-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights 

Recycled Water Facility 

 
A discussion will be held on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility and other events 
related to the recycled water plant. The Board will have opportunity to provide direction to 
staff and legal counsel.  
 
 

Recycled Water Facility Production Data: 

2020 Treated Delivered 

August 8.8MG 8.2MG 

September 8.2MG 5.1MG 

October 7.4MG 4.5MG 

November  5MG 1.4MG 

December 4.7MG .55MG 

2021 Treated Delivered 

January 4.8MG .23MG 

February 4.4MG .13MG 

March 5.9MG 1.8MG 

April 8.5MG 7.6MG 

May 9.3.MG 8.2MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.5MG 9.1MG 

August 9.4MG 9.0MG 

September  9.1MG   6.9MG* 

October 7.6MG    2.6MG** 

November 5.2MG 0 

December  4.7MG 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 
 
 
 

7-1



2022 Treated Delivered 

January  4.4MG 97,000 gallons 

February 4.4MG 1.5MG 

March 6.6MG 3.5MG 

April  7.6MG 3.8MG 

May  9.2MG 7.4MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.6MG 8.1MG 

August  9.2MG 8.1MG 

September  8.6MG 6.7MG 

October 7.9MG 4.6MG 

November  5.9MG 310,000 gallons 

December  5.4MG 154,690 gallons 
 
 

2023 Treated Delivered 

January  5MG 0 gallons 

February 3.3MG 0 gallons 

March 3.5MG 0 gallons 

April  4.9MG 32k gals. Dust Control 

May  5.1MG 432k gals. Dust Control 

June  4.8MG 456k gals. Dust Control 

July 6.2MG 1.05MG Dust Control 
 
 
 

*  Sharon Heights substantially tapered off their water usage for September which is the reason for the large 
discrepancy between treated and delivered. 
** Treatment was reduced in the second half of the month. Rain in late October and an irrigation equipment 
malfunctions caused water delivery to decrease.  
 
 

The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or brochure prepared in 
whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water Project - Sharon Heights:  Funding for this project has been 
provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants from 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does mention of trade 
names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use. 

 
 
 

7-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 

and Status Update 

 
A discussion will be held on the District’s Bayfront Recycled Water Projects and other 
events related to the recycled water projects including financing, environmental review, 
design/build issues and grant applications.  
 
The Board will have the opportunity to provide direction to staff and general counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

8-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

8-2



            WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside Waste 

Management Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid Waste 
Franchise Re-Assignment 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
President Fran Dehn, will report on any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business. 
General Manager Ramirez will report and seek direction on the solid waste franchise re-
assignment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

9-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

9-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 AGENDA ITEM 10 

 
 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) 

Plant 

 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), Commissioner 
George Otte, will report on pertinent items regarding SVCW Operations, CIP and 
Finance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of August 23, 2023 
 

10-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

10-2


	Agenda August 23, 2023
	3A - Minutes August 9, 2023
	3B - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1629 for the Construction of a 4-inchSewer Main Replacement at 141 Duranzo Way, Portola Valley,California
	3C - Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1606 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola Valley,California
	3D - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1606 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 30 Holden Court, Portola Valley,California
	3E - Consider Resolution Authorizing the President and Secretary toEnter into Agreement Creating Covenants Running With theLand for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley
	3F - Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1623 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley,California
	3G - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1623 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 229 Grove Drive, Portola Valley,California
	3H - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant toClass 3 Sewer Permit No. 1614 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 214 Grove Drive, Portola Valley,California
	4 - General Manager’s Report
	5 - Consider Awarding the Flow Equalization and ResourceRecovery Facility Improvements Project to Anderson PacificEngineering Construction, Inc.
	6 - Consider Adopting Resolution Recognizing the Achievement ofa Six Years Safety Record Without a Lost Time Accident byWest Bay Sanitary District Employees
	7 - Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon HeightsRecycled Water Facility
	8 - Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Projectand Status Update
	9 - Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside WasteManagement Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid WasteFranchise Re-Assignment
	Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW)Plant



